
WAYS & MEANS MEETING 
Monday, August 28, 2017 

 
 
Vice-Chairman Gillilland called this Ways & Means Meeting to order at 10:10 am, with the 
following supervisors in attendance: Archie Depo, Ed Gardner, Shaun Gillilland, Joe Giordano, 
Charlie Harrington, Mike Marnell, Steve McNally, Noel Merrihew, Jim Monty, Ron Moore, Jerry 
Morrow, Roby Politi, Randy Preston, Tom Scozzafava, Michael Tyler, Joe Pete Wilson and 
Charlie Whitson, Jr.      Wes Miga was previously excused.   
 
Department Heads present:  Patty Bashaw, Linda Beers, Mike Diskin, Nancy Dougal, Judy 
Garrison and Dan Manning.  Dan Palmer had been previously excused. 
 
Deputies present:  Jim Dougan and Michael Blaise. 
 
Also present:  Seth Celotti and Todd Hodgson. 
 
News Media present: Pete DeMola – Sun Community News. 
 
GILLILLAND:  I will call this ways and means meeting to order.  We have already done the 
salute and roll call so we’ll move right into resolutions. 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Chairman – C. Harrington    Vice-Chairman -  N. Merrihew 

Monday, August 14, 2017 
 

1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO AWARD A 
CONTRACT WITH EBEHAVORIAL HEALTH FOR TELEPSYCHIATRY SERVICES IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE ESSEX COUNTY PROCUREMENT/PURCHASING 
POLICY IN THE MENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT AT A RATE NOT TO EXCEED 
$200.00 PER HOUR.  Harrington, Merrihew 
 

2. RESOLUTION APPOINTING JOAHD TOURE, MD AND MICHAEL SCHRECK, MD AS 
DIRECTORS OF COMMUNITY SERVICES’ DESIGNEE PHYSICIANS, IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH NEW YORK STATE MENTAL HYGIENE LAW.  Wilson, 
Gardner 
 

3. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO GO OUT TO RFP OR 
BID FOR PERSONNEL EMERGENCY RESPONSE SYSTEM (PERS) IN THE OFFICE 
FOR THE AGING DEPARTMENT.  Tyler, Marnell 
 

4. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT TO APPLY 
FOR AND ACCEPT A NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
ACCELERATED TRANSIT CAPITAL FUNDING GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$43,387.00.  Morrow, Harrington 

 
GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
MONTY:  Can you just remind me what that’s for Shaun? 
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GILLILLAND:  Okay. 
 
MONTY:  Can someone remind me what that’s for? 
 
GILLILLAND:  Is Nancy here from transportation? 
 
MANNING:  Nancy could you come up?  Can I have a motion to allow Nancy the privilege of the 
floor and a second?  Moved by Mr. Monty, seconded by Mr. Tyler.  All in favor, opposed – 
carried. 
 
DOUGAL:  Good morning.  This is something new.  Last year they gave us ’15 and ’16 money 
and there is a resolution coming later to amend the contract for the ’15, ’16 money and that 
money was going to be used for a pole barn.  This money here it has to be a ten year useful life 
and we’re hoping to do the recommended changes to the Kurtz Building, windows, and doors 
whatever to make it more energy efficient. 
 
MONTY:  Thank you. 
 
DOUGAL:  You’re welcome. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any other questions or discussion?  Being none, all in favor, opposed – carries.  
Thank you Nancy. 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chairman – S. McNally     Vice-Chairman – G. Morrow 

Monday, August 14, 2017 
 

5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF THE 
REPAGE EQUIPMENT FOR THE TOWN OF NEWCOMB, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$12,768.50 WITH GRANT FUNDS AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER 
OF THE TOWN OF NEWCOMB’S OLD REPAGE EQUIPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$4,272.50, WITH FUNDS TO COME FROM THE RADIO PROJECT.  McNally, Marnell 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
Chairman – N. Merrihew    Vice-Chairman – R. Politi      

Monday, August 14, 2017 
 

NO RESOLUTIONS 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE DPW COMMITTEE 
Chairman – G. Morrow     Vice–Chairman – R. Politi 

Monday, August 21, 2017 
 

6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A FIVE-YEAR SERVICE CONTRACT WITH GRAYBAR 
IN AN AMOUNT OF $60,960.00 FROM BUDGETED FUNDS, AT A RATE OF 
$12,192.00 PER YEAR FOR INSPECTION, SERVICE, AND TESTING OF ALL 
SWITCH GEAR EQUIPMENT AT THE ESSEX COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING, 
AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR THE COUNTY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID CONTRACT.   Monty, Gardner 
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7. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO PURCHASE LEICA 
R400 TOTAL STATION SURVEYING EQUIPMENT FROM MTS SYRACUSE FOR THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,853.00, FROM 
BUDGETED FUNDS.  Morrow, Merrihew 
 

8. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO AWARD A 
CONTRACT TO ESPC, PLLC IN THE AMOUNT OF $107,620.00 WITH FUNDS TO 
COME FROM THE COMMUNITY RISING FUNDING, FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
INCLUDING PRELIMINARY DESIGN, PERMITTING, RIGHT-OF-WAY, FINAL 
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
AS NECESSARY FOR THE BEEDE BROOK/GULF BROOK PHASE III PROJECT 
LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF KEENE, AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $107,620.00; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR 
COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID CONTRACT.   Wilson, Depo 
 

9. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO PURCHASE A 2017 
WESTERN STAR TRIAXLE ROLL OFF TRUCK FROM TRACY ROAD EQUIPMENT 
FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $138,415.00 
WITH FUNDS TO COME FROM BUDGETED SOLID WASTE FUNDS.   Gardner, 
Monty 
 

GILLILLAND: Discussion? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Yes, this morning when I came in Linda Wolf who is our Purchasing Agent 
brought this resolution here to my attention, I assume that Jim is here she said no one has 
discussed anything at all with her in regards to this purchase.  She doesn’t know if it has gone 
through the proper procedures, with State contract so she was concerned about it. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Can I have Mr. Dougan come forward and answer that question. 
 
McNALLY:  I move courtesy of the floor to Mr. Dougan. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Second, Mr. Gardner.  All in favor, opposed – carries. 
 
DOUGAN:  This is kind of in response to that recent crisis we had where they, roll off trucks we 
had all three of them broke down.  We are piggybacking off of Onondaga County’s contract and 
I did speak with the County Manager he’s not here to verify that but before we moved forward 
with it.  No, Linda wasn’t involved sometimes we move fairly quickly trying to solve – 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I understand but the procedure is outlined for a procurement the Purchasing 
Agent is supposed to be involved.  It’s all I’m saying. You can discuss it with Linda but she 
absolutely as our Purchasing Agent should be involved. 
 
DOUGAN: She could of called me too Tom. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  She didn’t know about it until this morning when it appeared on her desk and 
just to counter that it’s your responsibility as a department head to contact her if you’re looking 
to make a purchase.  They don’t contact you.  Okay?  Thank you. 
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GILLILLAND:  Any other questions or discussion?  Being none, all in favor, opposed – carried. 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASING AGENT TO AWARD CONTRACTS 
FOR CONSTRUCTION AT THE NUTRITION BUILDING TO ADIRONDACK CONCRETE 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $311,000.00 FOR SITEWORK AND CONCRETE; TO CLUNE 
ELECTRIC IN THE AMOUNT OF $157,000.00 FOR ELECTRICAL; TO LH LAPLANTE IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $195,000.00 FOR HEATING, VENTILATION AND AIR 
CONDITIONING; TO LH LAPLANTE IN THE AMOUNT OF $98,000.00 FOR PLUMBING; 
AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR THE COUNTY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE SAID CONTRACTS.   Merrihew, Monty and withdrawn. 

 
GILLILLAND:  This resolution was passed at the special previous to this meeting so I’ll need a 
motion to withdraw.  Mr. Merrihew, second by Mr. Monty. All in favor, opposed – carries. 
 

 
10. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH SCHODER RIVER 

ASSOCIATES IN THE AMOUNT OF $28,800.00 FOR ENGINEERING CONSULTING 
SERVICES INCLUDING, SURVEYING, HYDRAULIC ANALYSIS, TEMPORARY 
BRIDGE DESIGN AND PRELIMINARY PERMANENT DESIGN FOR THE 
LETSONVILLE ROAD OVER PARADOX CREEK BRIDGE IN THE TOWN OF 
SCHROON WITH BUDGETED FUNDS.  Marnell, Moore 
 

RESOLUTIONS RECOMMENDED BY THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
Chairman – R. Moore     Vice-Chairman – C. Whitson 

Monday, August 21, 2017 
 

11. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT #MISC-
17-0067, WITH DALBEC AUDIO LAB IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $20,273.00 
FROM CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT FOR THE INSTALLATION AND UPGRADE TO 
THE AUDIO SOUND SYSTEM IN THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS AND 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE SAME.  Whitson, Moore 
 

12. RESOLUTION OF CONDOLENCE TO THE FAMILY OF KELLY M. DEZALIA.  Moore, 
unanimous 

 
FINANCE/TAX REDUCTION/MANDATE RELIEF COMMITTEE 

Chairman – T. Scozzafava     Vice-Chairman – R. Politi 
Monday, August 21, 2017 

 
13. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CLERKS OFFICE TO ACCEPT A 

RECORDS MANAGEMENT GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $63,700.00, AND 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING A BUDGET AMENDMENT INCREASING REVENUES AND 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE SAME.  Tyler, Merrihew 
 

14. RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION TO THE COUNTY CLERK OFFICE STAFF.  
Depo, unanimous 
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15. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A 90 DAY CONTRACT EXTENSION TO THE LEASE 
ON THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT BUILDING LOCATED ON FOX RUN ROAD, 
ELIZABETHTOWN.  Merrihew, Marnell 
 

16. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING LAURA CARSON, SENIOR ACCOUNT CLERK TO 
EXECUTE DOCUMENTS AS THEY RELATE TO THE AUDITOR’S OFFICE, IN THE 
ABSENCE OF THE ESSEX COUNTY AUDITOR.  Monty, Merrihew 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

17. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A NEW YORK STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (NYSDOT) 2015 AND 2016 ACCELERATED 
TRANSIT CAPITAL (ATC) GRANT  IN THE AMOUNT OF $73,423.00 AND FURTHER 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY CHAIRMAN OR COUNTY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACT AGREEMENT NO. 4 AS IT RELATES TO 
COMPTROLLERS CONTRACT NO. C003795.   Morrow, Monty  

 
GARRISON:  I did make a copy for everyone it is a resolution from the floor from the Public 
Health Department, on your desks.  It’s actually amending resolution #43 to hire an 
Occupational Therapist at $33.22 an hour for a 30 hour full time work week. 

 
18.   RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION #43 TO HIRE A 

FULL TIME OCCUPATIONAL THERAPIST IN THE PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
AT $33.22 PER HOUR.  Scozzafava, Merrihew 
 

GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I’ll offer the floor to Linda Beers if she would like to address it. 
 
GILLILLAND: Motion by Mr. Scozzafava, second by Mr. McNally.  All in favor, opposed  - 
carries.  Thank you Linda. 
 
BEERS:  Tom wants me to come up here because he wants to heckle me. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Not at all. 
 
BEERS: So in February I came to the board and I tried my best, I thought it understood that I 
could get an occupational therapist for that, what I paid a registered nurse and I decreased the 
salary. I ran the ad four times. I had several interviews and every time I got to salary the people 
said no so I was unable to fulfill the position at a lower rate. The approved union price is $33.22.  
I never hired anybody under the lowered price. The original agreement was to change a skilled 
nursing RN position to an occupational therapist because we’ve been unable to meet the need 
last week alone we turned away four OT because we don’t have an occupational therapist.  So 
in order to stay in the budget I didn’t make it 37.5 hours I made it 30 hours to use still the RN 
position and keep it there.  The reason for the heckling because at the time Mr. Scozzafava said 
to me you’ll never hire an OT for that price and I challenged that I would so I’m here to say I 
could not.  So I’m putting or asking to put it back to what it was and what it is in the union 
contract of $33.22. 
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SCOZZAFAVA:  The one concern that I have and Linda and I did discuss this last week is 30 
hours going to be enough to fill the position? 
 
BEERS:  So we’ve never in this county had an occupational therapist that was a full time staff.  
We’ve covered it since our inception of contracted people which is obviously the cheapest way 
to go.  Jim Hope worked for this county for many, many years and he covered the whole county.  
Since he retired we have been unable to get any one contractor so we have contracts with 
several contractors but they only want to take two or three and only in the area that they live in 
so we have this need in the county so the answer to your question is yes, I really believe that 
that will be sufficient and that will meet the need of the county. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: And that we can recruit at 30 hours? 
 
BEERS:  I think that it is attractive because at 30 hours you can get full time benefits verses 
working 40 hours so you know, that 30 hour employee has all the county benefits with working 
30 hours.  Several of the people that we interviewed are on the younger age of their life span 
and I think that they might find 30 hours really, a wonderful opportunity with raising children. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you.   
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Thank you. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Any other discussion or questions for Linda? 
 
MONTY:  My concerns are number one, can we change those hours in that position?  Is that 
through Personnel, is that a given that we can drop 37.5 to 30?  Dan is that doable? 
 
MANNING:  I’m sorry, I was daydreaming. 
 
GILLILLAND: The question was can we reconsider a 37.5 hour position? 
 
MONTY:  Because that’s how it is listed in Personnel and drop that to a 30 hour. 
 
MANNING: We certainly can change it if you want to. 
 
BEERS:  It’s not by hours. 
 
MANNING: I don’t think it’s necessary really.  This is a private contractor right? 
 
BEERS:  No this will be a full time employee so there’s a regulation in the Personnel and just so 
you know I did clear this with Dan and Jennifer Mascarenas that it was okay to do this, there’s a 
paragraph that talks about when people will need to have benefits and that’s over 20 hours. 
There’s many employees in the county I have other people that aren’t at 37.5 so it’s not 
something that hasn’t’ been done.  I just made it 30 hours because I was trying not to raise 
more money, the 7.5 hours less a week keeps it in the budget that I initially came here with. 
 
MONTY: Which leads to my other question if we find that 30 hours a week isn’t enough we’re 
looking at $50 plus an hour for the overtime that’s my concern. 
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BEERS:  So I do still have contracted OT’s and I would use them in the event that this full time 
person couldn’t make it. We have historical data though that says that this 30 hour employee 
should be more than, should meet the needs.  Remember now I’m turning away anybody that 
doesn’t have it so the ebon flow in the CHHA at any given moment, in any given town we have 
our RN’s and sometimes depending on if there is a big flu or something we would have to turn 
away people and then other times you know we might have a soft week where the RN’s have 
time to catch up on their paperwork so I mean if I say it’s going to be 30 hours we’ll make due at 
30 hours.  There’s another company I mean I’m not saying, right now we have an unmet need 
for sure.  I mean I am absolutely telling people that they’re not, that I cannot meet their need if 
you’re being discharged and you need occupation therapy the Essex County Public Health 
service if we don’t have one on our staff and the contracted people can’t take an extra one on 
we’re telling them we can’t take that patient.  Thank you. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Linda when we previously advertised the position at twenty-six and some 
change correct?  How many hours was that? 
 
BEERS:  37.5  I did the math. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  So you feel that even though we increased the rate per hour at the end of the 
day they are still making around $50,000 a year, $55,000. 
 
BEERS: So this is what I did when the initial reason I came to you is I had a skilled nursing 
position I was willing to flip to an OT.  I didn’t ask for an extra position.  I didn’t create a position. 
I changed a position but I’m trying to work within the budget I had for the registered nurse that’s 
always been in my budget that’s where I came up with, I actually talked to Tom about it was 
going to make this a 29 hour week position and Tom is like, I think we should go with 30 so that 
is what I did.  I don’t know.  I mean I can only tell you getting any of these skilled services is 
challenging and hard there’s an OT shortage throughout Essex County and probably the whole 
North Country, this might be more appealing to somebody they could work a four day work 
week practically and see all the people they need to see and still get all county benefits.  That’s 
what I’m hoping for. 
 
GILLILLAND:  So Linda probably by budget time well, I guess by next year you will have data 
but not by budget time in case you have to increase right? 
 
BEERS: Yeah and you know, if I can’t hire anybody that’s really the concern and you need to 
balance whether, we could always give more money I could make this $80,000 I’m sure I’ll get 
an OT but I have shortages, lots of shortages exist in this county any of these skilled services 
are always a problem.  I mean we’ve trebled and strife to get RN’s over the years.  We have a 
fabulous name for ourselves so we honestly never have that problem and our turnover is nil.  
We have RN’s that have been with us historically for long, long periods of time. 
 
POLITI:  So Linda I just want to be clear on this, this occupational therapist would work out of 
here?  Would people come to them?  So how many hours a week are spent in the car driving 
from here to Minerva and all over the county of the 30 hours? 
 
BEERS:  That’s what happens with any of our PT’s, OT’s or skilled nursing, so we do our nurses 
by region right, our nurses work in the northern region, the southern, eastern or western. This 
OT would be asked to go all over the county but we would do it in regions for the day right, so if 
she or he works four days a week I would say on Tuesday she’ll do the southern region, on 
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Wednesday she’ll do the – that’s how we’ll typically set it up and that’s how the contractor set it 
up.  He would you know, had a list of people, he arranged their visits.  The person schedules 
their own OT they don’t want to drive any more miles than need be either. 
 
POLITI: No I understand that it’s just when you are 30 hours and spend 10 hours a week in a 
car. 
 
BEERS: Right but that’s the nature of the beast on anyone of these home visit kind of things 
right?  So this is a paid service as well right, it’s a billable service and it goes really nicely along 
with there’s we’re an episodic billing and there’s all kinds of tics to check off to make full 
complete services and having an OT visit in with somebody is really important and in our aging 
population in Essex County occupational therapy will become more and more and more of a 
need.  So at this time I have several contracted people but again they are limited in case load 
and only work right around in the area that they live this will fill that void 100% if I hire 
somebody. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any other questions for Linda?  Further discussion on the motion? 
 
HARRINGTON: Hopefully North Country is listening and maybe that will appease a program 
that they will be able to entertain and assist in positions. 
 
BEERS:  So the other thing just to clarify too in 2018, occupation therapists will have to have a 
doctorate degree.  So like, more than a Masters so I’m also chased with that so the Office of 
Professions keeps upping requirements across the board on what people have to have in order 
to do things, it requires more and more education. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any other questions for Linda?  Further discussion on the motion? Being none, all 
in favor, opposed – thank you Linda.  Further motions from the floor? 
 
GARDER:  I would like to offer a resolution of condolence to the family of Helen Coste.  She 
worked for the county for 23 years. 
 

19. RESOLUTION OF CONDOLENCE TO THE FAMILY OF HELEN COSTE.  Gardner, 
unanimous. 

 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you Mr. Gardner. 
 
TYLER: I have a motion, a resolution to relieve Consolidated Mortgage LLC to pay interest and 
penalties of $65,114.15 on the Golf Course. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Second. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Second by Mr. Scozzafava. 
 

20. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TO RELIEVE CONSOLIDATED MORTGAGE, LLC 
PAYMENT OF INTEREST AND PENALTIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $65,114.15 ON 
THE TOWN OF WESTPORT GOLF COURSE PROPERTY.  Tyler, Scozzafava. 

 
TYLER:  I lead the discussion if I may? 
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GILLILLAND:  You may. 
 
TYLER:  The family is facing two options right now, keep the course running is number one.  
Number two is sell to another entity other than a Golf Course, the second choice is definitely 
devastating to Westport and a negative impact on the County in general.  As we move forward 
in Westport the Golf Course is one of the most important cornerstones.  I have been hearing 
from the board a few reasons why we shouldn’t help them out.  Number one, doing this will 
allow others to do the same.  If one is asked for this then it should be done on a case to case 
basis which I’ve heard in this room many times on other subjects.  Each situation would be 
different in this case the first owner failed to pay his taxes then it went up for bankruptcy and in 
turn was purchased by the current owners who have put a bunch of time into the course to this 
date in the short time that they’ve owned it, to bring the course back to where it was years ago.  
I heard that if other cases came to the board that we would be playing with God to make a 
decision on who would be able to get relieved from the interest and penalties if that was the 
case then this board makes God decisions on a weekly basis. I’ve sat here and have heard 
many times on other issues, it will be done case by case why not this one?  And I have heard 
it’s not legal well, as I understand the law you can do that as a hardship through the county and 
in this case there would be such a hardship to the county.  I’ve been on this board almost two 
years now and I have witnessed other towns in this county being helped out by this board and in 
this case the Westport Golf Course would be a fraction of what I’ve heard other towns being 
helped out.  Westport is asking for your help. 
 
GILLILLAND: Thank you. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I guess the question that I have is are we talking just interest and penalties 
here? 
 
TYLER:  Yes. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: They are not asking for any forgiveness on the base tax that’s owed, correct? 
 
TYLER:  Right. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  The other question that I have the time frame where they were in bankruptcy 
does interest and penalties continue to accumulate during that period if you are in bankruptcy?  
They continue on that property? 
 
MANNING:  Yes. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  The other question that I have, not a question but I do want to point out that 
during the time that this property has been a golf course, which by the way is a tremendous 
asset to southern Essex County.  I don’t recall any time at all that they ever asked for any kind 
of tax break which they probably would have been entitled to during the change of ownership 
and so on. I mean the place has fallen on hard times, it certainly is critical to not only Westport’s 
economy but also it certainly has a direct impact on the Town of Moriah and other communities 
that adjoin the Town of Westport and I think that we as a board should try to help them out. 
Now during this whole time period where no taxes were being paid this county paid the warrant 
to the Town of Westport, the school district, the fire district and water district anyway we are 
responsible for paying all those relevies on the warrant now we have the opportunity to at least 
recoup that money that we’ve already expended and get this place back on the tax roll where 
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we don’t have to continue to pay the warrant.  I mean I think we need to take that into account 
also.  We shelled out a lot of money during those years that those taxes were not paid on that 
property now we have a chance to recoup those dollars.  You know the amount of interest and 
penalties that’s not going to make or break us but it certainly will make or break that venure.  
Thank you. 
 
MONTY:  My question Ike, do they have a plan when they would pay back the taxes 
themselves? 
 
TYLER:  I’ve had different conversations with them and they said they would probably pay them 
soon I don’t know how soon.  I didn’t ask them when they were going to pay them back but they 
definitely want to pay them back right away as soon as possible. 
 
MONTY:  That would be one of my concerns let’s have a time, not necessarily in writing but a 
word from them that if this is paid, they will pay the taxes. 
 
TYLER: I can definitely add that to this resolution. 
 
GILLILLAND:  So we’re talking specifically interest and penalties right now? 
 
TYLER:  Correct. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Total forgiveness and then another separate question payback schedule in back 
taxes, correct?  Which they have I believe offered a payment schedule?  $15,000 once and then 
$3,000 there on. 
 
TYLER:  That payment would include that if they were relieved of the interest and penalties. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you. 
 
GIORDANO:  Ike just remind me in 2013 they didn’t pay the taxes the previous owner paid then 
in 2014 they went bankrupt and when did this occur? 
 
TYLER: This year or maybe last year. 
 
GIORDANO:  So the penalties and interest began in 2014? 
 
TYLER:  I believe it occurred for a number of years. 
 
GIORDANO: When the current owners took over do you have any knowledge of what the 
penalties and interest were at the time they took ownership?   
 
TYLER:  I don’t have that information. 
 
POLITI:  Mike Diskin is here.  I will offer the courtesy of the floor to Mr. Diskin. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Moved by Mr. Politi, second by Mr. McNally.  Mr. Diskin will you please come up.  
The question is what was the amount of penalties and interest accrued at the point when the 
previous owner took over prior to going bankrupt?  Is that correct? 
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GIORDANO:  Yes. 
 
DISKIN:  The property actually goes back to 2013, in 2013 the former owner came in and made 
an agreement with the county to do an installment payment which he was eligible for which he 
did on the prior years, the only years he owed. He entered into an agreement and he paid, he 
agreed to pay it off over twenty-four months which is allowable by law, he made eighteen of 
those payments that was even during bankruptcy he continued to make those payments up until 
April of 2015 in which time he stopped.  I’m not sure exactly why although in conversations with 
the former owner he told me it was because of bankruptcy court cobbled his ability to pay 
anymore by not allowing him to spend any money so he had to stop making payments so he 
paid $43,000 of the amount that was owed at the time he made payments. So there was only a 
portion ’13 that was left.  I don’t have the exact numbers here or the exact interest but then in 
’14 when he still owed it there was an accumulation of $15,644 in interest so from ’15, ’16 and 
’17 and I believe you only got in ’16 is that correct? 
 
MANNING: Yeah in September of that year. 
 
DISKIN: So he had interest accumulated of about $30,000, the former owner, well actually more 
than that. 
 
POLITI:  So what is the amount of the interest and penalty now? 
 
DISKIN: I didn’t realize you were going to be bringing this up. 
 
TYLER:  $65,413.14 is what I had as of last week. 
 
DISKIN: Yeah, that’s probably penalties, interest and whatever accumulated and other fees that 
were in there accumulated around $65,000? 
 
TYLER:  Sixty-five yeah. 
 
McNALLY:  In your tenure has the county done this before? 
 
DISKIN:  Not of this magnitude no. 
 
McNALLY:  But we have done taxes and penalty relief? 
 
DISKIN: Very rarely Mr. McNally it’s only been done to my knowledge in the time that I’ve been 
here we’ve only done these and its only been done when it is found that the county makes some 
kind of an error in the original billing or something have we done this. We’ve had many of these  
requests and it always has been historically did the county made any mistake on these, if we did 
and for some reason there was an error we corrected it other than that we haven’t certainly 
nothing of this size. 
 
McNALLY:  Is this property going to be in the auction this week? 
 
DISKIN:  No it is not it is in the potential auction coming up in the next round September 8 of the 
return date for these after that date will begin the next phase of foreclosure. 
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McNALLY:  Earlier you said there was a legal way to do this with a twenty-four month pay back 
is that available to the new owner? 
 
DISKIN: No because there is multiple years involved in it. 
 
McNALLY:  So it’s not available? 
 
DISKIN:  No. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I’m somewhat confused as usual they’re asking for relief on the interest and 
penalties.  Do we set the rate for that interest and penalties? 
 
DISKIN: We do not that is set by the State Law it is statutory. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Which is what?  Just refresh my memory. 
 
DISKIN:  I believe 5% when it comes back as a onetime penalty on the return payment and the 
State Comptroller sets it on an annual basis or taxation and finance I believe sets it on an 
annual basis, the interest rate has been set at 12%, for as long as I’ve been here it hasn’t been 
changed.  It’s consistent they set it every year, once a year and the last twenty-three years it’s 
been 12%.  
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  A good return for the county.  Anyway, so it’s my understanding that they can 
pay all the taxes excluding the interest and penalties that are due now?  Because if not, that 
changes Mr. Tyler the whole scope of where we are going with this.  I mean I will support 
relieving the interest and penalties on the condition that they are going to pay all the taxes on it, 
the back taxes.  Is that the case? 
 
TYLER:  That is what I’m hearing and I can change my resolution we can give them a time 
frame to do that. 
 
MANNING:  Just for clarity sake people who are involved in 2014 -2015 tax sale and this is a 
piece of property just so you are all aware, have one bite at the apple to pay by the redemption 
date to pay everything interest and penalties, back taxes, current taxes and that is by the 
redemption date of September 8 most counties don’t do this but we allow a second bite at the 
apple for our people fourteen calendar days before the actual scheduled calendar date which is 
mid-October, October 14 or 20th the owner has the right to repurchase not redemption, 
repurchase if they pay all that back taxes, together with interest and penalties then the county 
will re convey the property back to them at that point.  If they miss that fourteen calendar date 
then we sell it at the auction and there is no further recourse so we do give our residents a 
second time to pay which most counties, the majority probably ¾ do not but interest and 
penalties have to be paid in addition to the base amount and I have given you a letter and 
stated the legal reasons my position but 1182 is the statue that deals with penalties and interest 
if you want to allow those to be not paid, 1184 and the rest of the real property tax law deals 
with the tax foreclosure and the 1182, there is one paragraph statue that says interest and 
penalties can be waived if it’s in the county’s best interest.  As you know Tom you’re always a 
stickler on this when we have these issues of interest and penalties historically it’s always been 
we set up a process where it goes before Mike and I and then we make a decision.  In the past 
we have stated why we can do or why we can’t do it so you all know that. There are two 
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different issues if you are looking for penalties and interest that’s 1182.  If you are looking for 
some sort of a payment plan the law doesn’t allow for that. 
 
TYLER:  So let me get this straight if they are relieved of the interest and penalties they still 
would have to pay the back taxes by October? 
 
MANNING: Absolutely.  Let me just be a little more specific there are three things that they can 
do, they can redeem their taxes, they can wait to the repurchase date and pay the taxes, they 
can file an answer if they have a legal defense so the things that they can do.  Redeem, 
repurchase or answer. 
 
DISKIN:  Dan correct me if I’m wrong but 1182 also says waive all or part of the interest, is that 
correct? 
 
MANNING: Yes. 
 
DISKIN:  So you don’t have to waive all of the interest it says you can waive all or some of the 
interest just clarification on that.  It isn’t all or none. 
 
POLITI:  Have they made any attempt the new owners, to pay the taxes? 
 
DISKIN:  No. 
 
POLITI: So since they bought the property they made no attempt to pay? 
 
DISKIN: No not for 2017. 
 
POLITI:  And they made an offer to pay $50,000 is that right? 
 
MANNING:  Yes, that’s the second issue whether we want to allow them to pay in installments. 
 
POLITI:  Did we respond with an answer? 
 
MANNING:  I have not responded.  I sent a letter to you guys because I wanted direction.  The 
law doesn’t provide for installment payments.  It does provide for some installment payments 
one, it goes through the towns which is you make payments January, February, March and April 
you divide up the bill, you make installments. That doesn’t apply in this situation. The second 
installment payment is as I eluded to before you can have as much as 24 months to make 
installment payments.  They don’t under the law, they are not eligible under the law because 
number one you have to make application to make installment payments before December 31 
of the year that the payments are due those dates have gone by also if you’ve been involved in 
installment payments before and have defaulted on that that disqualifies you, there is a few 
other items that disqualifies you so unfortunately they don’t qualify and taxation is not a province 
over a municipality it is the State’s responsibility.  They in certain circumstances give us the right 
to tax like our sales tax, our mortgage taxes, FICA tax but they also set the perimeters of how 
you can pay the taxes and there is no other installment method available nor can you do it by 
local law. 
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POLITI:  It just concerns me because they haven’t made an attempt since they bought it. The 
other owners were in bankruptcy, these owners aren’t in bankruptcy is that right?  How many 
other commercial properties do we have in a similar situation in Essex County? 
 
DISKIN: I couldn’t answer off hand but I’m sure there is a number of them.  We had one that just 
went through bankruptcy that would have been in the tax foreclosure and we have one coming 
up in Wilmington that’s a larger business that may just keep an eye on this to see what 
happens, there’s a number of them.  There’s quite a few. 
 
POLITI: Here’s my concern I understand and this is a tough one and I understand but my 
concern is that you do this and then they sell the property and they sell the property in which 
they didn’t have to pay interest and penalties and they sell the property to somebody else.  I’m 
concerned about it.  I don’t want to vote on that without some kind of a concrete agreement in 
place although the last agreement was never fulfilled, correct? 
 
DISKIN:  On the installments? 
 
POLITI: Yes.  I want an agreement.  I want to see, I want a situation where if we are going to do 
this they don’t have the right to sell the property or walk away from that financial responsibility 
and then we will have not created something that potentially is beneficial for them financial but it 
is not for the rest of the taxpayers you know? I’m just a little worried about it.  I’m worried about 
establishing a precedent for the next one in the Town of Wilmington, or the Town of 
Ticonderoga and so forth but I do understand the need and Ike’s position here it’s very difficult. 
 
TYLER:  This is one of only a few businesses in Westport other towns have multiple, a lot more 
businesses than Westport. This is 8-10 employees next year they are going to get the 
restaurant going they are looking at 18-20 employees to the Town of Westport, this would be 
devastating. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I want to go back to Mr. Politi’s concern and a rightful concern of not paying the 
current year unfortunately as Mr. Diskin is aware of the law, when you get into this amount of 
taxes because it was a sizable assessment on that property and you’re not certain you’re going 
to pay all the taxes you go in and you pay the 2017 you’re still going to go into foreclosure by 
the county so you upfront this money with the danger still lurking out there you can’t raise the 
cash to pay the prior two years, correct Michael? 
 
DISKIN:  That’s correct. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: That you’re going to lose it anyway. 
 
POLITI:   I understand but most people that buy property assume that they have to pay taxes. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I don’t know the guy.  I do agree with you there needs to be some kind of an 
agreement that is written and also included in that I think should be in there your concern, that if 
that property is sold in a specific timeframe that they are responsible for interest and penalties. I 
agree this just can’t be done by a simple resolution.  There has to be an agreement if this board, 
we should have the County Attorney draft an agreement and then come back to us for approval. 
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POLITI:  Right.  I think if we had some kind of an agreement then we can say look we didn’t just 
do someone a favor.  If the property is sold there is a responsibility for proceeds to be escrowed 
to pay off that debt. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I mean I’m not totally comfortable with this. We do need some type of an 
agreement drafted.  I’ve been here since ’86 was off for three or four years working at prison but 
anyway but I do recall I mean I would have to go back into the archives maybe Jerry’s memory 
is a little better than mine but I think we have done that I think we did it once for the State 
Theater in Ticonderoga and they ended up losing it anyway and years ago, sometime in the 
‘80’s I think we did it for Frontier Town who was having difficulty paying their taxes but again, I 
think it has been done in the past not very often but I do believe that it has been done. 
 
GILLILLAND:  One thing I believe and I don’t know if Mr. Tyler wants to amend his resolution 
but we are up against a tight timeline on this at this point if we are going to move forward to 
authorize this to come up with an agreement unless we do it in the next week before the full 
board? 
 
TYLER:  Could I change that to pay the interest and penalties and if the business was sold 
within the next five years those fees would be paid? 
 
MANNING:  You can do whatever you want. I have given you my legal opinion on this in a letter. 
We have a policy and during my tenure we don’t usually do things like this.  Everybody gets into 
dire straits, we have a little, old lady who can’t pay her past interest and penalties and when she 
asks, she doesn’t have a legitimate, legal reason we don’t grant it or haven’t granted it who is to 
say her situation isn’t more important than a business but if I am authorized to draw an 
agreement I certainly can draw an agreement. I’m not in favor of it for the legal reasons I stated 
in the letter and prior executive sessions but I will certainly do what you want me to do then they 
also have I said we’re dealing with two situations one, penalties and interest forgiveness and the 
other is they have to pay their taxes by that October 15 or 20th date or they will lose it or they 
impose an answer. 
 
TYLER:  Would it help if I withdraw and leave it up to you to draw an agreement? 
 
MANNING:  No I would like a resolution on the floor as to what you want to do. 
 
TYLER:  I will move to withdraw my resolution. 
 
MANNING:  Then what are we going to do? 
 
TYLER:  Then I’ll make a resolution for you to draw up a plan going forward on what we just 
talked about. 
 
MANNING: Well, they both go together I can’t draw up an agreement without a vote from the 
board saying you want me to do this to relieve interest and penalties for a certain period of time.  
I will certainly draw up the agreement if the resolution passes. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I’ll move an amendment to this resolution that is on the floor that the County 
Attorney drafts an agreement for review by this board for approval, in regards to this matter. 
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GILLILLAND:  Motion to amend.  A second, by Mr. Marnell.  Discussion on the motion to 
amend? 
 
MONTY:  Again in order to make me feel more comfortable I would like to see a combination of 
what Roby said.  We need to have some type of a guarantee that you’re going to pay the taxes 
that you owe by a specific date if we are to waive the interest and penalties and also included in 
that should be if you sell the property in the next five years those interest and penalties will 
come back to the county.  Is that something that is possible? 
 
MANNING:  That’s part of this resolution. 
 
MONTY:  Is that something that is conceivable? 
 
MANNING:  I can put that into the agreement. 
 
GIORDANO: Two things come to my mind, and I’m not aware of the real estate rule but buyer 
beware with any type of  purchase a property you have to be conscience of what you’re getting 
into and secondly, I know we spoke of this earlier good faith estimate so at this particular 
juncture I think there is a number of possibilities of an agreement on the penalties but I don’t 
know if the board should be the one to determine what that is based on the owners of the 
properties I think they should be coming forward and arguing what they think is fair in terms of 
getting it reduced. 
 
TYLER: They have submitted documentation by their lawyer to the county. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any further discussion on the amendment on the floor? 
 
MOORE: I am in sort of a tough situation here because I do feel for Ike and the Town of 
Westport and this important business but in the last two years we’ve refused this for Jelly Stone 
Campsite in the Town of North Hudson.  Three or four years ago the Town of North Hudson 
bought 131 acres, we paid for that.  We had penalties and the interest relieved but we paid for it.  
Within a month we turned over properties to Moriah, two parcels to Schroon Lake they didn’t 
pay anything so I don’t want to see any business go out we need those businesses in the towns 
this board when we went through the purchase of that 131 acre wood lot we came up with a 
plan.  It was not exercised for the next two parcels that were transferred to Moriah and Schroon 
Lake where it was – I sold the property after five years prior to my proceeds I think it was 1/3 of 
what the parcels were going to be but we didn’t use that.  Two years ago Jelly Stone as a result 
of Irene came onto some real hardships so as much as I empathize with the Town of Westport 
I’d like to level the playing field so if I have to pay for a property that’s up for taxes foreclosure 
everyone else has to.  I asked Tom when it came up, I said Tom are you going to pay for it?  
Absolutely not. So we gave it to him.  It should be a level playing field regardless what of your 
town population is or how many weighted votes you’ve got or whatever the issue is so until you 
know, I can sympathize but we need to come up with a plan that’s fair to every one of us that’s 
in this room in our town.  I will say one other thing if it’s good for a town in my opinion is it’s good 
for the county and if our town supervisor’s support as Ike is supporting his business in the Town 
of Westport rightfully so then we should be supporting our supervisor. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  First of all in all due respect Mr. Moore you are comparing huge apples to 
oranges here.  The parcel in the Town of Moriah if anything did a favor for the county.  It had a 
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condemned house on it that was adjoined to our waste water treatment plant, we weren’t talking 
about 131 acres of a wood lot. 
 
MOORE:  What was it assessed at? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Let me finish.  Excuse me?  I don’t recall and what that has to do with this 
subject on the floor anyway is beyond me because the Town of Westport isn’t talking about 
purchasing the property.  I do agree with supervisors always have support of supervisors and I 
won’t even get into Frontier Town how long we’ve stayed on that piece of property and haven’t 
collected a dime on it okay?  But we did that, we supported that and I’ll leave it at that. 
 
GILLILLAND: Okay thank you very much.  Let’s return to the motion on the floor, amended to 
the original resolution.  Any discussion specifically on that matter? 
 
POLITI:  How are you going to draft this? 
 
MANNING:  I’m going to declare it on this resolution.  It’s going to be difficult to draft but if I’m 
asked to draft it you want to waive interest and penalties but they’ve got to pay their taxes by 
October 20 or interpose a legitimate answer in defense which will, they have to interpose an 
answer by the 8th of September if they do that the property will then likely be pulled from this 
auction because I will have to take, it gives me time to respond to the answer and then either 
the defendant can make a motion to dismiss and what we do is when that happens we pull it 
from that auction because I don’t have enough time between getting that motion and the auction 
date but the problem is going to be are you going to say that you waive interest and penalties 
but they have to pay taxes by the 20th of November and then if that happens you’ll allow them, if 
they sell it within a certain time period you’ll have to repay – 
 
POLITI:  I’m not going to agree to sell it within a certain time period. 
 
MANNING: Okay take that out of the agreement. 
 
POLITI:  Personally I’m not going to agree to that.  No I’m going to say if they ever sell it period 
the money should come back to the county. 
 
MANNING: I agree with you. 
 
POLITI;  I’m not saying five or six years or anything that’s an opportunity for somebody to wait it 
out five years and one month that’s nonsense. 
 
GILLILLAND: I conclude but at this point you understand the guidance for drafting and that will 
come back to the full board right? 
 
MANNING:  Yes but I want to make it clear if you are waiving penalties and interest they are 
going to have pay those taxes upon the –  
 
GILLILLAND:  Waiving penalties contingent upon them paying the full taxes by the 20 of 
November. 
 
MANNING:  Or you if they submit an answer are you going to say that?   
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DISKIN: October 20. 
 
MANNING:  It is October 20. 
 
GILLILLAND:  The waiving of the interest and penalties would be contingent upon them paying 
the full taxes by October.  Okay. 
 
TYLER:  Will we have the document by the next meeting? 
 
MANNING:  Yes. 
 
DISKIN:  Can I ask for clarification by the County Attorney?  If this agreement is drawn and the 
Judge pulls the foreclose will we not have to go through a repurchase?   
 
MANNING:  Yes. 
 
DISKIN:  With the additional cost of 10% plus final fees if it’s done after the foreclosure if it’s 
done before that it is not added. 
 
MANNING: Right so what Mike is referring to if you pay before the redemption date there is no 
penalties, no interest after the foreclosure date the property is deeded to us and then we get 
ready to put it in the auction but we give that property owner to repurchase from us 14 calendar 
days before the actual scheduled auction date which probably will be October 20 but they would 
have to pay an additional 10% plus filing fees on the matter of the overall tax. 
 
MONTY:  So if they were to respond to you by the September 8 on what is going on right now 
that in then would preclude us, we could take it off the auction in November? 
 
MANNING: If they were to pay or if they were to impose an answer. 
 
MONTY:  So then we would remove it from the tax sale so you have the opportunity to respond.  
Wouldn’t that give us more time? 
 
MANNING:  Yes. 
 
MONTY:  So maybe if they were to respond it would gain us more time to make the decision. 
 
GILLILLAND:  In the conversation I had with Mr. Manning, it would have to be on a legal basis. 
 
MANNING:  Yes to have a legal basis in the answer, even if they don’t have a legal basis they 
still have to respond. 
 
MONTY:  Even if they claim a legal basis? 
 
MANNING: Right. 
 
GILLILLAND:  So we have a motion right now to amend, a motion is made and a second. Any 
more discussion on the motion to amend? 
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MERRIHEW: Can I just ask the Attorney a little clarification if they move to file an answer and it 
is determined to dismiss do they have then a time before it comes back up for consideration? 
 
MANNING:  No.  They file an answer and then what happens is I make the motion to dismiss if I 
feel that there is no legal basis then that goes to the Judge, there is a twelve day notice period 
for the other side then they give their attorney time to respond then the Judge makes the 
determination unless it’s a use order to show cause you’re talking about a month, month and a 
half or more depending on how quick the Judge is before you get an answer. 
 
MERRIHEW:  What if that timeline then goes beyond the auction date? 
 
MANNING: And that’s why we pull it. 
 
DISKIN:  They have to wait until the answer to give them authorization it’s easier to pull that off. 
 
MANNING: And then we deal with it in the next auction. 
 
MERRIHEW: That’s my question, in that scenario with this board and those people the 
opportunity to come up with a structured settlement. 
 
TYLER:  My feeling on this whole thing is give them this option and if we can come up with this 
document by the next meeting and if we don’t agree to it than that would give them another 
option to do it this way. 
 
DISKIN:  It would have to be done before September. 
 
TYLER: Right before September 8, I mean before our next meeting before then. 
 
MANNING: Keep in mind we are talking about two separate things, interest and penalty waiver 
and paying the taxes. 
 
TYLER: Right if the board allows that. 
 
McNALLY:  What is the current taxes due on this property excluding the penalties and interest? 
 
DISKIN: Excluded the penalties and interest I would have to take time to look at it because they 
paid some of it in ’13 so it would take me a few minutes, roughly I want to say around $160,000 
around that neighborhood I couldn’t give you an exact figure because when you look at the 
exact amount you have to deduct the payments on the principal somewhere around $160,000, 
$165,000. 
 
MANNING: There’s also two parcels right? 
 
DISKIN: The other parcel is not involved in the foreclosure at this point because they paid taxes 
up until ’15 so that’s really not part of this one. I don’t believe they are asking for anything on 
this one at this point it’s a small parcel it about $13,000 it wouldn’t be part of it, wait I’m sorry it 
would be because it was part of ’15, it would be in there.  I don’t think they are asking for any on 
that but it would the full amount is about $13,000 but they are not asking that to be included at 
this point. 
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GILLILLAND:  Further discussion on the motion to amend? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Before Dan goes through the work and legal research to draft this document do 
we know what they are looking for? 
 
MANNING: They want a waiver of penalties and interest. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Exactly I think Dan should probably contact, did I understand that they have an 
attorney for this situation here. 
 
TYLER:  They are looking to be relieved of interest and penalties. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Any further discussion on the motion to amend? 
 
HARRINGTON:  We all know the only thing constant is change and I would assume that they 
have gone to a bank and attempted to establish a loan that would elevate them of this situation.  
I would assume that they have looked for private investors and that both of those options came 
in a negative.  I am afraid we go back to my first statement the only thing constant is change. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you very much. Anything else on the motion to amend. 
 
MERRIHEW:  On the table now to forgive interest and penalties. 
 
GILLILLAND:  This will amend the motion to forgive, adding that Mr. Manning will draft an 
agreement letter to present it to the board at the full board. 
 
MERRIHEW:  That would include interest and penalties? 
 
GILLILLAND:  Interest and penalties with other provisions in there of paying before the 20th or 
foreclosure or providing an answer. 
 
MARNELL:  Town of Schroon owns a golf course and we have supplemented that golf course 
every year at one time it was $40,000 to $50,000 a year to keep it running.  The golf course in 
Westport to not only the local people but the businesses that spin off of revenue is very 
important that they do continue.  All golf courses across the nation are struggling and you 
probably won’t see another golf course. 
To reply to what Mr. Moore said about the piece of property down in Schroon that was a benefit 
for everybody that rides a snowmobile in Essex County because it was the only piece of ground 
that you could travel from Schroon Lake Village really going north without going on the 
Interstate banks or Route 9.  It was a very cheap piece of property that you can only access 
without crossing Route 9 or the Northway. 
 
MORROW:  I’ve been sitting here biting my tongue and I’m going to do something here today 
that I really shouldn’t be doing but I’m going to do it and since Mr. Scozzafava brought my name 
up in my memory in 24 years and I’ve never gone away to prison.  We do have a policy and the 
only policy I remember seeing here and I could be wrong we do listen to the County Treasurer 
and if there is no problem or mistake on the counties part we’ve never waived any interest and 
penalties and that I know of, never because we’ve turned people away that couldn’t afford to 
pay their taxes on their houses because we wouldn’t waive the penalties and interest.  After said 
all this today and I respect my colleague over there from Westport and against my better 
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judgment, but his community needs this and I’ve listened to everything he’s saying and it 
doesn’t matter what we’ve done in the past I’m going to support this today. 
 
GILLILLAND: Thank you. 
 
POLITI:  Dan I just don’t know how you’re going to draft this without the input from everybody? 
 
MANNING: The way I will draft this is penalties and interest would be waived if they pay by the 
redemption date or if they pay by the October 20 date in the event that they answer then 
penalties and interest wouldn’t be waived because you could go on forever on that or make 
them readdress or something because if they answer it’s going to buy another year we’ll figure it 
out I guess it would have to go before the full board. I’ll send something to everybody within the 
next few days. 
 
POLITI:  That’s what I’m saying you would have to send a draft to everybody. 
 
WILSON:  Was it mentioned that the board has the power to reduce the penalties and interest? 
 
DISKIN:  You can do a partial. 
 
WILSON:  And wouldn’t that get us off the hook for a waiver which down the road might save us 
a little of the trouble in – or did I hear you wrong? 
 
DISKIN:  I believe 1182 says you can waive either all or partial of interest and fees if that’s what 
you’re referring to. 
 
GIORDANO:  We could then waive all of that preceded the purchasing all the penalties and 
interest prior to them purchasing and they would be responsible for that amount? 
 
GILLILLAND: We could.  Do we know the number? 
 
McNALLY:  Do we know what the breakdown is dollar wise with the interest and penalties? 
 
GILLILLAND:  They are looking at the number right now. 
 
DISKIN:  The penalties are around $8800.00, the interest is –  
 
McNALLY:  How much was the penalty? 
 
DISKIN:  Around $8800.00. 
 
McNALLY:  And with the interest is somewhere around – 
 
DISKIN:  I don’t have an exact amount, somewhere around sixty-some odd thousand. 
 
TYLER:  Sixty-five. 
 
DISKIN: The penalties are 5% as required by law, there are a few other minor fees in there. 
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SCOZZAFAVA: I just want to follow up on Mr. Giordano’s suggestion or pointing that out, I think 
that is actually a good suggestion and it should be looked at is prior to the ownership of the 
building plus they were bankrupt at that point in time.  I’d be interested to see those numbers 
also. 
 
DISKIN:  If you look at the 2016, which is the year that they acquired it and ’17 which they have 
not paid the total interest on that is about $9,500.00, that’s what’s happened since the year they 
acquired it.  Obviously the biggest share of the interest is in the prior years because the longer 
you go back at 12% a year it accumulates quite a bit and going back to 2013 it’s over $27,000 in 
interest alone, the longer you go back the more interest accumulates over time than the lesser 
amount of around $9,500 owed at the time they acquired it. 
 
GILLILLAND:  So is there any other discussion on the resolution to amend?  Being none, all in 
favor, opposed – carried.  Now a vote on the resolution as amended.  Any discussion? 
 
MERRIHEW:  Can you read it? 
 
MANNING:  It will have to be clarified before regular board we’ll get it to you but in essence it 
will be a resolution authorizing the waiver of all interest and penalties in the event that they pay 
taxes by the redemption date or purchase date or if they answer the decision and in the event 
that they should sell the property those interests and penalties shall be recouped and the wild 
card in there is how do you want to handle if they answer and then there is an extended period 
of time so that’s what I will have to address in the agreement that I will float to the board so that 
is as close as we can get to clarity on the resolution I can make it right now. 
 
MERRIHEW:  In the event that we do this and they come up with the money by the due date? 
 
MANNING:  Then interest and penalties would be waived. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I again think that you don’t have to waive all interest and penalties.  I think what 
Joe proposed to me, makes sense you don’t open a door, you’re not opening it completely, 
you’re agreeing to waive interest and penalties prior to their ownership that they are going to 
pay interest and penalties and taxes due since the day they took the property. To me that’s I 
mean that makes whole sense and you can hang your hat also on the fact that those interest 
and penalties that go beyond that date or prior to that date they went bankruptcy and I think 
that’s a good faith effort by this Board of Supervisors to do that and hopefully you know, 
hopefully they can come up with the money.  If they can’t come up with the money then down 
the road they are going to have issues trying to maintain that. I hate to say that but that’s a fact 
of doing business. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Are you making a motion to amend the motion as amended? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  I’m throwing it out there for discussion to see how our County Attorney feels 
about that or our County Treasurer. 
 
MANNING: It makes sense to me. 
 
TYLER:  Could we have two documents drawn up one that says that and another one that says 
what we’ve talked for the last hour? 
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MANNING: Not really they are two separate things.  You are either waiving interest and 
penalties across the board by the date or you waive interest and penalties up until the time they 
took ownership.  I mean to do two different agreements one would contradict the other I don’t 
know how we would do that. 
 
TYLER:  Yes I think it would be a better way of putting it in my resolution for them not having to 
pay interest and penalties before they owned it. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Okay so you are making a motion to amend that they will no longer be 
responsible of paying penalties and interest accrued prior to their ownership. 
 
TYLER: Yes. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: I’ll second the amendment.  I don’t know what we’re amending but anyway, if 
we are going to do a resolution stating that all taxes due, plus interest and penalties from the 
date of their ownership that should be in the resolution.  There shouldn’t be another one out 
there that’s going to allow them an agreement to negotiate. I think that by this board offering that 
okay, here’s what we’ll do from the date they purchased the property interest and penalties start 
on that date for any of those back taxes that are due prior to that we’ll forgive the interest and 
penalties.  I think that’s a fair offer to the new owners.  We can throw that out there and also 
throw out an option but you know, but obviously they’re going to want to come up with some 
other type of an agreement too. 
 
DISKIN: I just want to make one clarification just so you understand, you’re going to say from 
the date they purchased it that creates a little bit of a problem because if they purchased it in 
June we have to calculate the interest from there on, I mean we have got to split up that interest 
for the year 2016.  I don’t know if it would be simpler just to say all of ’16 and ’17 they are liable 
for because if you’re going to say from date of ownership they may claim well, I didn’t own until 
June or whatever date they bought it then we’ve got to go back and divide that up in interest. 
 
TYLER:  Sixteen and seventeen would be fine make it easier. 
 
DISKIN:  That’s why I’m asking just to clarify just to say they’ve got to pay interest for ’16 and 
’17. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Your motion is that interest and penalties will be waived for 2015 and prior? 
 
TYLER: Correct. 
 
GILLILLAND:  And you second that Mr. Scozzafava?  That is a motion to amend the resolution 
as amended.  Any discussion? 
 
GARDNER: Yes what about what Mr. Politi said?  If that thing sold that should be in there to pay 
all of it back. 
 
GILLILLAND: That’s the original motion. 
 
GARDNER:  That’s the way I would negotiate it. 
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MANNING:  That would stay.  That’s the original motion. We only amended was what taxes are 
going to be, penalties and interest waived on were going to be up and through. 
 
GARDNER:  We’ve had so many motions. 
 
GILLILLAND: Okay the motion to amend is penalties and interest will be waived for ’15 and 
prior.  Okay.  Any discussion on the amendment. 
 
McNALLY:  I think it should state prior to their ownership and not just those years so that there’s 
clarification. 
 
GILLILLAND:  The point that Mr. Diskin brought up was the fact that we have to break it up to 
the exact date of ownership. He recommended that we amend it to make them responsible for 
’16 and ’17 full year. 
 
McNALLY: Going forward if this issue comes up again we are going to have some precedent set 
prior to this ownership because I think it’s important, not just giving things away we have a 
reason behind giving things away. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Any further discussion on this second amendment of this resolution?  Being 
none, all in favor – opposed. 
 
MERRIHEW: Opposed. 
 
GILLILLAND:  One opposed, Mr. Merrihew. 
Okay, going forward now on the motion as twice amended, all in favor, opposed – carries.  
Thank you very much. Any other resolutions from the floor? 
 
PRESTON:  I promise you this is going to be simple.  I just wanted the rule on informational 
purposes on Friday afternoon the County was awarded a $200,000 grant with the demolition of 
the buildings several of the buildings at Frontier Town so I think that’s really, really good news.  
We do have a signed contract with the brewery.  They are chomping at the bit to get into the 
ground and this is going to go a long ways to get those buildings cleaned up not only on the 
property that the brewery wants but there’s the old restaurant and these funds are going to 
cover that so I think that’s very, very good news. 
The second thing which I don’t think is going to be painful is I’m sure everyone is aware we 
have an EMS committee that has been meeting on a regular basis about the EMS crisis in 
Essex County and somehow I’ve complained to the right person that we’re getting movement 
now.  We’re actually getting phone conferences every other week almost sounds like they are 
going to do something on their end to try to help not only just Essex County but many, many 
communities in the State going forward on recruitment and retention.  I’m not going to dwell on 
that but one of the first things that need to happen is an order for, if at some point in time Essex 
County is going to get into the EMS business which I do think we very desperately need to 
number one there’s this fall, there’s a process we can apply for municipal consolidation fund 
which I’m getting very strongly from people in Albany that we are going to be approved for what 
we put in for but the first step we need to do and the important thing here is it’s at no cost to the 
county is the county needs to apply for what is called a certificate of need so I’d be looking for 
permission for Patty Bashaw to apply for this certificate of need, put in an application and 
basically you will be putting out there that there is a need in this county for us to get positioned 
where if certain things fall into place which I’m hopeful after a year and a half they are going to 
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that you need a certificate of need to be able to operate a county wide EMS system and again, 
there is no cost to the county to do this. So I would be looking forward someone who would 
want to move a resolution to go down this path. 
 
GILLILLAND: Mr. Preston moves, second by Mr. McNally. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY TO APPLY FOR A CERTIFICATE OF NEED 
FROM THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH RELATIVE TO THE CREATION 
OF A COUNTY-WIDE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE (EMS) 
Moved by Mr. Preston, seconded by Mr. McNally 
 
GILLILLAND:  Discussion? 
 
MONTY:  Randy I would just like to know more about what, I understand your certificate of need 
that aspect of it but what does the rest of that encompass because speaking for myself, I don’t 
know a lot of what is going on and really for me to make – if we go through with this certificate of 
need does that lock us into everything else? 
 
PRESTON:  No it does not. It just allows us the permission if we get to the point that we think as 
in the board, and again this was never a forced thing some towns may want in and some towns 
may not want anything to do with it, it allows us permission to operate. 
 
MONTY:  Understood but I don’t know how the opting in verses opting out fence, are we talking 
forming an EMS district so we’ll be taxed?   So if my town chooses not to join are my tax payers 
excluded from that tax? 
 
GILLILLAND:  This and the district are completely separate. This is not forming the taxing 
district.  This is just setting up the ability for the county, if I’m not incorrect Randy to operate 
throughout the county either through command and control or with our own county employed 
forces. 
 
MONTY:  Well somebody is going to have to fund that. 
 
GILLILLAND: That will be brought by next month when the report and the recommendations of 
the strategy will be briefed to this board. 
 
MONTY: Because I have no clue how the plan will be funded or how it’s going to roll out.  That’s 
my concern. 
 
PRESTON: Well, how it’s going to be funded again, every town is paying for emergency 
services now in some way, form or manner.  I know like for instance in Wilmington it’s a pretty 
sizable chunk we did raise taxes like 35% in the last two years but again, this is your choice if 
you want to opt in or not.  It’s not a forced thing. 
 
MONTY:  Understood but in conversations with Patty she told me I could choose to opt in but I 
would still have to fund my ambulance squad. 
 
PRESTON:  Well there is going to be a dollar figure, if you want in there will be a dollar figure 
associated with every town, and if you want in you’re going to have to pay it, if you don’t want in 
you’re going to have to negotiate with Patty and/or – 



Ways and Means 
Monday, August 28, 2017  26 
 
MONTY:  I’m just saying, if I’m opting in now I’m going to also fund that and on top of that my 
ambulance district is going to come to me and want to be funded. 
 
PRESTON: Luckily that’s not my battle. 
 
MONTY:  Yes, I understand. 
 
PRESTON: And it’s a choice whether you want in or you don’t. 
 
MONTY:  Understood and hopefully we can bring it up at the town board meeting so it is 
community based. 
 
PRESTON:  It should be. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  In yesterday’s Times Union there is a good article on this whole concept, 
actually they are doing it in Albany County where it is working extremely well and the bulk of it is 
is we have mutual aid now and there’s a shared service agreement if Moriah wanted to go into 
agreement with Crown Point and I’m just using that as an example and Westport where we 
cover one another, and we work out a cost and we all contribute towards it.  How do you raise 
that money?  Obviously you are going to have to raise it through property tax.  If that town 
decides that they want to set up an ambulance district and some towns have already done so 
they have that option.  Down the road I still think the best option would be and I know Mr. 
Preston has been working hard on that is for the legislature to allow counties to form a county 
wide emergency service district which not only helps in regards to paid ambulance squads but 
also supports the jail, supports public safety, supports all those other benefits that tax exempt 
properties currently receive and pay nothing towards. 
 
PRESTON:  That is correct and just for point of interest, if we charge 25 cents per thousand of 
assessment we would raise $1.7 million dollars which would fund this program but that has to 
be approved by the legislature. 
 
McNALLY:  Yes, Warren County is also involved in this trying to form a county wide district.  The 
problem with it is, the southern part of the county North Hudson, Minerva, Newcomb because 
the geography, 15-20 miles from each other this can be a very hard program for us to be 
involved with and I think if we are not involved it would be very difficult for us as taxpayers in 
Minerva paying money towards this program and unless the program changes from the original 
applied theory that’s been around it’s not going to work for our small towns that are. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  And for that reason if you’re not receiving the benefit you certainly can be 
excluded from the district that’s no different – 
 
McNALLY:  Then it goes back to the district. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Correct but what I’m saying if the county were to form a district down the road, 
you don’t feel that you’re going to receive any benefit obviously it’s not fair to charge your 
taxpayers for that. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Any other discussion on the motion to apply for a certificate of need for the 
county?  Being none, all in favor, opposed – carries.  Thank you.  Any other motions from the 
floor? 
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DEPO: Yes, I think you all received an email from Mr. Lincoln from Jay last week on his property 
and he has kind of a different situation and yes part of his property house was built on someone 
else’s property and Dan you know more about this than I do if you want to let the board know. 
 
MANNING:  Sure, I would actually rather, to give you legal advice on this I would like to go into 
a brief executive session, I know it’s late in the day but the issue has been brought up and there 
are some issues better explained to you and the law explained to you in executive session on 
this.  If you want to address it today make a motion for an executive session and a second. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Moved by Mr. McNally, seconded by Mr. Depo.  All in favor, opposed – carries.  
We are now in executive session. 
 
THE COMMITTEE MOVED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 11:35 AM TO RECEIVE LEGAL 

ADVICE ON A PIECE OF PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF JAY. 
 

THE COMMITTEE MOVED BACK INTO SESSION AT 11:49 AM. 
 

GILLILLAND:  Note the time is 11:49.  I need a motion to come out of executive session, Mr. 
Giordano, second Mr. Monty.  All in favor, coming out of executive session. No decisions were 
made.  Any other motions from the floor? 
 
HARRINGTON:  Just an announcement we have a fish hatchery committee meeting 
immediately after this. 
 
GILLILLAND: Thank you. I also need to announce the CSEA negotiations for the Sheriff’s unit 
have been cancelled for today.  Anything else need to come before the ways and means for 
motions at this time?  Resolutions?  If not, we do have a presentation now of the work that has 
been done by the fairgrounds committee and this is a report to the board as results of the 
inquiry into the CCE, Soil and Water building in Westport.  This will be an informational 
presentation to the board and afterwards if necessary, we’ll take questions and answers from 
the board, it’s not a public hearing. So I’ll turn it over to Mr. Dougan. Thank you. 
 
DOUGAN:  Good late morning I guess.  The fairgrounds committee charged the DPW 
department Todd Hodgson our engineer, myself and Seth Celotti our Health and Safety Officer 
in looking at an agricultural center building.  It’s quite often referred to Cornell Cooperative 
Extension and/or Soil and Water that’s kind of its official name right there Agricultural Center 
Building.  So what we were first charged with was one, having Todd as a professional engineer 
look at the foundation system and some other deterioration that has been taken place on that 
building and second, they asked us to look at a report that was done by an outside independent 
engineering firm back in 2006, it was also updated in 2008.  So, I’m going to update you on a 
couple goals for today’s meeting and Todd is going to go through that inspection and that report, 
some things that were missing in that report and after we get through that we’ll get to a point 
where we start to discuss where do we go from here because that’s pretty expensive the report 
in today’s codes and standards. 
So our purpose for today’s discussion is a review of that previous report, an update on the 
previous reporting that’s done providing some possible options and how to deal with the current 
conditions. From DPW’s standpoint we were looking at things first from a safety perspective for 
those current tenants inside the building and then the goal has really always been to save the 
structure.  You know it’s got historic component it’s been there a long time, it’s an important part 
of the community that’s always been our first take on the structures so anything you might have 
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heard in the media or seen discussed that’s not how it was originally looked at.  Yes, we’ll 
discuss all options but that’s not the view point that it started with.   
Todd’s got a little history here in 1923 this was built by Horace Moses for Junior Achievement.  
It was originally called the Junior Achievement Building.  It was originally built so that as a three 
season facility that junior achievement would come, present their projects during the fair 
specifically and the upstairs was utilized as actually dorm rooms for that junior achievement.  
Again it was originally built as a three season facility so when Todd gets into the report and he 
starts to discuss some of the issues it really revolves around the fact that it was built as a three 
season but has operated as a four season building for a while. So you notice on this slide it says 
fill in topic beginnings, then Government assistance and tax that’s probably at least a little bit of 
the question out there right now.  The fairgrounds I think we all see a public benefit to having 
them but it gets harder and harder to fund so you see the date 2006 master plan and 2008 
where the work, scope and cost were finalized that’s the report that Todd is going to specifically 
talk about and try to update. There were some things missing in that report, some codes that 
weren’t correctly identified, some situations that weren’t correctly identified to try to get you up to 
a cost of what that plan would cost in today’s dollars.  So Todd do you want to take it from 
there? 
 
HODGSON:  The Crawford and Sterns report that was completed in 2006, I believe was a result 
of CCE’s request that document was created and it looked something like this.  It identified the 
current building use, it also identified its State use assessment but it didn’t really get into some 
of the original intent of that structure and some of its permissible readings and I know you can 
read but I don’t mean to quote this but I think it’s very, very telling, “the agricultural center of the 
building serves a complex mix of constituents ranging from youth to seniors, daily to occasional 
visitors and users of Federal, State and County programs and last but not least its own staff and 
county volunteers” and not to cut to the quick but down here it says, “what is more usual is that 
the customer service with the exception of reception and large meetings and events are all 
located on the second floor”  It’s an act of readings this building has kind of gone through as the 
county has needed space to house different programs. 
This was a little bit of the task of that happening.  Its priorities which actually I believe came from 
the tenants of this structure in other words the tenants were asked Soil and Water, Cornell 
asked for a list of priorities these are the priorities that they came up with.  You will see item by 
item is that too small, more space, more storage and these are questions we are going to have 
to answer moving forward because if you have been to the building, walked through the 
hallways what you will find that there is a lot of stuff or a lot of people crammed into these 
offices and these spaces. And these are some of the questions I have regarding that including 
some safety and standards we will need to address at some point here as well. 
That study was updated in 2008, had thirteen scopes of work including New York State wage 
rates and architectural and engineering fees that was between $1.3 to $1.6 million dollars 
depending on a couple of options so I did not come up with that cost. I did not come up with that 
scope of work. I’m mainly stating that this is what that document stated that those needs were 
and we’ll go through a little bit of that renovation work but I would rather just concentrate on 
some of the updated items. 
 
McNALLY: Can we ask a question?  Was that report based on to repaint it as a three season or 
to turning that into a four season building? 
 
HODGSON: I think it was for turning it into a four season. 
 
McNALLY:  Because I think the three season approach would be off the table moving forward. 
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HODGSON:  So report one, this had to do with some immediate repairs that were necessary to 
heat this structure from further derogation you’ll note that these have been completed by DPW 
between that time and the present.  The only problem is we have a number of years lapsed 
since that scope of work was presented where there are other items that have taken the place 
of those immediate needs. 
Scope of work two was porches – this was mainly some down spouts, porch improvements, 
entrance doors, railings, stairs the only thing is is that it didn’t include all the flashings and 
maladies and it didn’t include roofing.  If you look at some of these areas this is the current 
condition, all those areas are in great need of flashing and repair so I included some of those 
updates and a cost estimate. 
Scope three – attic improvements venting water I think the major problem here is there’s been 
some continued deterioration with some leaks around the cupola you can see some of the water 
damage in this photo here.  The other thing is if you look at this photo here this insulation in 
here we are suspecting that maybe asbestos contained insulation.  We have to have that tested 
but that would certainly significantly impact the cost of any improvement here also there is an 
inadequate vapor barrier which also does cause a problem for areas like this there’s underwater 
stains so forth in the ceiling of the second floor. 
Scope of work four and five – this is probably some of the larger of the document as far as costs 
is concerned.  Foundation under this structure it’s built on piers much like Floral Hall is 
constructed it’s also another three season structure.  Those footings we did an excavation down 
in that pier, there’s an improper depth for on what typically would be a code today plus the pier 
is very small, unreinforced where the foundation had that’s underneath the pier and just to go 
through this list on reinforced, inadequate foot and cover, inadequate foot and fitness, 
inadequate foot and venting area, inadequate foot and crawl space and over barrier around the 
crawl space, deterioration of new joist and insulation.  That’s work that was done and you can 
see the installation falling down there is no method of keeping that moisture on the ground, 
coming up and rotting these floor joists and really creating kind of mold issue and the reason 
why it was enclosed with insulation even around the skirt kind of like a mobile home is because 
it’s cold in the winter. The problem is that you trap that moisture inside that space and it ends up 
rotting from the underneath. 
Façade restoration – there was a couple of conflicting things here but by pulling that siding off, 
putting on some sheathing to give it some structural integrity to meet today’s standards was 
proposed in that document. That is going to be a bit more expensive than what they have 
costed out just because of the amount of trim and molding work that would be required to put 
the sheathing underneath, taking all that out, putting it back and getting that to match the rest of 
the structure so I guess with regard to that structural modification the other thing we need to be 
very careful of is that when we are significantly modifying a structure beyond a certain 
percentage we are required to complete everything to code so if you’re talking about the side 
and sway bracings, you’re talking about hurricane clips and other things that this structure never 
had and I think that that is probably a little further than what should have been proposed in that 
document just my thoughts on that. 
Scope of work seven – north porch conversion. This is the porch that is on the back of the 
structure.  It was proposed that this become the fair office and that the kitchen be moved from 
its present location to where the fair office currently is and then overhanging the porch.  I see 
this as a couple of different problems.  One is we are creating the same condition, not having a 
foundation or having just a crawl space underneath the kitchen area where we have sinks, 
drains, water supply to that fixture.  I think that is trouble maintenance wise to propose such a 
thing and it really speaks to the fact that there is so much in this building that the fair office is 
actually moved out onto the porch and the porch is converted to natural office space so that 
makes it a little bit more expensive. 
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Handicap accessibility – it was proposed to meet ADA requirements to have an interior elevator 
in the building to get to the second floor for the services that Soil and Water and CCE provide.  
The only problem is once you get up there the bathroom up there is not a handicap accessible 
bathroom and that would have to be updated as well along with some of the areas in the 
hallway would need to be addressed to allow for a wheelchair to be negotiated. Those 
improvements, I have not updated that cost for that. I would need a little bit further investigation 
in working with Seth on the ADA requirements that apply to the structure. 
Site restoration – drainage around the area no doubt that some drainage issues are existing 
there. What I would like to do is actually pull this portion of the scope out and actually have the 
assistance of soil and water, who is a tenant of this building help us address some of the 
landscaping issues, drainage issues which they could help the county apply for some funds to 
create some rain gardens one of which they have actually created on the fairgrounds but kind of 
addressed just a small area not really addressing the buildings concerns so there’s just a 
thought of maybe an avenue we could build and have that be something that the taxpayers 
aren’t paying for directly but there’s grants out there to help the county out. 
Scope of work ten – restoration of spaces.  This is the one of actually moving that kitchen out 
into this area and re petitioning off a meeting space.  I think the goal of the document and 
working with CCE was that we have expanded meeting space for meeting with those that come 
in or having classes.  I think both myself and Seth take exception to this plaque that’s actually in 
the building indicating that 128 people can occupy that for a dining conference area and 274 
can occupy that for auditorium use and I think last I spoke with Seth it was somewhere around 
75 definitely less than 100 should actually be in that space for auditorium use.  The other thing 
that they did not have in there for code compliant commercial kitchen is there needs to be ANSI 
system installed to adjust the fire suppression needs of the building also know too that there is 
no fire alarm system in this building which being a wood structure and the age of it I definitely 
would have some concern of that and that cost, some of those costs were not actually factored 
into the work done by Crawford and Sterns. 
Let me also note this, this is a change of building use.  When you change a buildings use those 
codes will have to be enforced.  If you are using a structure as it was originally intended there is 
room to not comply with those codes kind of a grandfathered situation but as soon as you start 
changing use like this, this section here has to meet all codes and standards. 
Electrical – this building was not built to take the electrical load of regular office space.  There 
are a few closets with power strips and communications here they get very hot this is an infrared 
photo of that and again with a wood structure, these areas are not fire proof. I would have a 
concern with that and those updates should definitely be addressed in this building what you 
see here is some old cloth wiring and the temperature is definitely up so that is a safety concern 
for that structure. 
Scope of work twelve – some heating concerns.  The main thing is that I believe it’s grossly 
underestimated as far as what the cost that they allocated.  I did improve upon that cost 
estimate to provide a little bit more funds to adequately address some of the heating problems 
of the building and I’m not sure if you are making such modifications especially as a whole for 
this building that we don’t have MFA compliance issues for the boiler room that Crawford and 
Sterns proposed.  Plumbing system, commercial kitchen not a huge cost but those costs need 
to be updated for that particular use. 
In total $2.3 million updating those costs from $1.6 to $2.3, these are some of the challenges, 
just getting some of those folks in this space, a lot of storage problems having them stay in this 
space with some of the electrical concerns and we think you need to have some verification of 
scope here who actually belongs in this building, and how are we going to fill that need. 
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DOUGAN: Thanks Todd. Again so what Todd just went through was where do we start?  The 
original direction was take this report, see what’s changed in the shape of the building, see 
what’s changed in the codes and knowing that the report was led by the tenants that were there 
in 2006, 2008 bring that to today’s dollars and let the board take a look at it.  So we came up 
with a $2.3 million dollar project, no immediate identifiable source of funding, let’s step back to 
when that report was done in 2006, 2008 there was talk about a SHIPO grant, there was a talk 
that the county would go after a SHIPO grant which at the time was 50% of the project costs 
and that one of the tenants, Cornell Cooperative Extension would do their best to raise funds to 
go towards that 50% match of the rest of that.  You know, $750,000 is a lot for anybody to raise 
but here we are pushing ten years later and that was never done.  As we talk about other 
options let’s not let the building deteriorate for another ten years while we discuss a plan of 
finance like that. 
In July on the 28th of July CFA applications were due, consolidated funding applications done 
through the Essex County Planning Office a lot of work had been done on that report so we 
were asked to quickly come up with what are our urgent needs that might be eligible for some 
funding in the CFA round. So we quickly tried to re scope it and our focus was really salvage the 
structure so Todd’s moving around here a little bit but life safety issues being electrical, some of 
the heating, some of the roofing, siding those kinds of things ended up to a number that we 
came up with at $302,000 and then just in saving the structure the roof, removing the panels 
underneath the foundation to stop that rot from happening from down below we got up to 
$498,000 so I heard Mr. McNally’s comment already about a three season building what the 
committee quickly decided to do was at least get a grant application for some money for the 
most urgent needs and those most urgent needs would go towards a kind of a three season 
facility or something that would at least salvage the building from further deterioration that was 
the initial goal. 
So what we applied for was a roughly $400,000 grant through SHIPO, we paired specifically for 
the agricultural building we applied for $400,000 and we put about $100,000 in there, maximum 
grant is five-hundred we put $100,000 towards the copula, the bell tower excuse me here at this 
building thinking that two historical facilities would look well on an application. We also applied 
through the Department of State which is all about jobs economic development for another two-
eighty-six was that the total Todd?  Or was it almost another four hundred? 
 
HODGSON:  Two-eighty-six was the grant funds. 
 
DOUGAN: Two-eighty-six was the grant funds and that was to deal with the asbestos.  I know 
we haven’t had it tested but if it looks like vermiculite, smells like vermiculite it probably is.  
We’re pretty sure the insulation is asbestos containing and have an idea of that cost but to deal 
with that asbestos and to deal with the electrical.  If the asbestos was out of the building there’s 
more work that we could do with our own forces and smaller grants down the line if we need to. 
We started with a $2.3 million dollar project with that report led by the tenants.  We backed off 
and immediately got some funding in and then we have a couple of other potential options to 
discuss. 
I think what needs to be done in the building no matter what we do you’re going to have to move 
people out of it to complete the work.  No matter what. I mean I don’t think we can change the 
whole electrical system or deal with the asbestos with people inside the building.  Most of this 
work is going to need them to be relocated maybe not permanently but you would at least have 
to find them some other space.  If we don’t get these grants that we just applied for you still are 
going to need – I mean if you look at that electrical wire there’s a lot more usage in this building 
of electricity than there was back when Horace Moses built it. That’s a concern.  If we’re 
concerned about those people I think you need to move them out of there temporarily to make 
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these changes. I guess the re location is the part where some of the community is concerned 
about and I understand that concern but if safety is your concern then maybe we ought to still 
consider it even if it is a short term solution and maybe if we get this money and we get it back 
to a three season facility maybe you can put them back in there three seasons of the year right 
away, I’m not sure. 
Other than that there’s some questions about the report itself it’s what we had to go off of at the 
time.  Is that the best use of space the way that report was done?  Are there other needs for 
space?  Mr. Scozzafava has brought up that there is county space needs first I don’t intend to 
disagree with that. 
So we’ve kind of got a no action alternative that’s kind of what’s happened the past twelve 
years, ten years my math is not very good, ten year since that report was originally done a little 
bit of work was done on the structural from time to time there have been proposals in the budget 
to do painting or to do roofing that you know, those are the first things that tend to get cut. 
Option two, the one that Todd spent so much time highlighting $2.3 million and option three 
what we just applied for if we get the grants totals $200,000 in county match and then the 
demolition we did put a number on removing the asbestos and just demolishing the building 
that’s, I don’t think anybody is really considering that but we wanted you to know what those 
options were and there was some email and correspondence recently about perhaps Cornell 
themselves taking the building over and that’s the last column and I guess we would have to 
wait and see if there is an actual proposal from them to do so.  I do just step back and say that 
2006 and 2008 report that was the plan of finance, was that Cornell was going to come up with 
50% of it and it kind of sat here so I feel from a DPW standpoint we’re taking this building 
seriously and we’re moving forward.  I heard comments on how the fair went and it looked better 
than it had in years so I wouldn’t want to derail what I see as some progress handing the 
building over to somebody who may or may not have the same ability to get funding and start 
that.  There’s a lot more decisions to be made. The committee wanted the board with all the 
media discussion everything that’s gone on to know what’s been discussed thus far. So I guess 
really Shaun and questions? 
 
GILLILLAND: Questions from the board? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: Jim good report by the way.  If the board decided to go in and do the complete 
rehab you said around $2.6 million? 
 
DOUGAN: Two point three is the number we’ve got right now. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Two to three years would be about $85,000 a year, that’s excluding the grant 
how long would that take to complete?  Best guestimate. 
 
DOUGAN: I would say, you’re talking moving the people out, I would say an 18 month process 
probably. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA: What was the square footage of the building Jim? 
 
DOUGAN: I don’t recall Tom. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Todd will find it. 
 
TYLER: You mentioned relocation. I would hope that in order for us to keep those jobs in 
Westport if this was to come to fruition we have plenty of areas in Westport for the relocation of 
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those employees.  Coming up next month where we have our Town Offices now there’s a 
beautiful spot by the telephone company now that’s going to be coming available and there are 
other areas in town to be looked at. 
Just before the meeting today I was given a petition looks like it’s been out for a couple of days 
probably 75 signatures on approximately.  Do you mind if I read what the petition is for? 
 
GILLILLAND: Yes. 
 
TYLER:  It says, we the people of Essex County, New York sign this petition against removal or 
relocation of Cornell Cooperative Extension jobs and Essex County Soil and Water jobs from 
the Town of Westport.  We also respectively disagree the Essex County purchasing the 
Jehovah Witness property in the Town of Lewis to relocate Cornell Cooperative jobs to as well 
as construction of an addition in the Town of Elizabethtown to house Soil and Water.  These two 
things are unnecessary expenses to the taxpayers of Essex County. 
I will tell you I have been inundated with phone calls and this petition is a few days old and there 
is already 75 signatures on it. 
 
GILLILLAND:  How many? 
 
TYLER: Approximately 75. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you. 
 
TYLER:  I thought there was a group of people earlier today, some have left because they 
couldn’t hang out for three or four hours but it’s a great value and a lot of signatures on here are 
not from Westport, a lot of them are from Moriah, Crown Point, Ti it’s a concept that the whole 
county needs to take a look at as we move on with this project. 
 
HARRINGTON:  Fifteen years ago that building was called Westport Cooperative Extension but 
please bear in mind that today it is Essex County Cooperative Extension.  All of the employees 
at that building realize the needs for improvement.  I have been at every Cooperative Extension 
meeting, two meetings ago we had quite a volatile discussion. The last meeting that we had I 
reported on the actions of the board and the actions of the board demonstrated to quote the 
Cooperative Extension Board which I want you to know has direct representatives from the area 
towns not only Westport. They realize that this situation has to be resolved and a remedy no 
matter what you do is hard pill but I do believe that they have come to an understanding that the 
personnel has to be moved, that the priority here is the objectives of Cooperative Extension 
which is getting more and more and more important as the days and years go forward.  I did 
have a discussion with them that there was a feasibility of the Board of Supervisors purchasing 
the building located in Lewis.  I did not receive any negative statements from the board.  They 
know that they are in a rock and a hard spot and they do realize today that they Board of 
Supervisors are their advocate and that the Board of Supervisors wants to do the right thing. 
With that being said, I think that you will realize that the Cooperative Extension Board wants to 
work very closely and realistically with the Board of Supervisors.  I believe that they do 
understand again, that personnel has to be removed from that building if that structure is to 
come up to the standards that we now have. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Thank you. Any other comments or questions? 
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PRESTON: It probably isn’t going to be popular but I normally say what I think so my biggest 
concern first and foremost is the safety of those people that are in the current building.  I think 
moving forward in purchasing the Jehovah Witness Building is the way to go.  I’ve been here 
again, ten years and in every one of those ten years we’ve needed space for something so my 
opinion is we should purchase that building. We should move the people out of Cornell into 
there and also let me be very clear, I’m not in favor of doing away with the building down there 
not the Cornell Building at all but I don’t know where we are going to come up with $2.3 million 
and I think it needs to be repaired but I think just because of the kind of work it’s going to time 
for that to happen. That’s nothing that is going to happen overnight and I think we need to be 
aggressive seeking out these grants and I also thought and am I wrong, that ARCH is also 
involved in trying to help and seek out grant funding? 
 
GILLILLAND:  ARCH wrote an email which I saw, saying that they would be able to assist but 
the county’s Community Resource’s access to the grants is the same as theirs and probably 
was greater. 
 
PRESTON:  Okay, so anyway in my conclusion because we’ve been here a long time I think we 
need to purchase the building in Lewis.  I think we need to get the people moved and then I 
think we need to continue to work aggressively to get that building rehabbed whether it’s a four 
season I’ll sleep at night either way but when I won’t sleep at night is if there is a fire in there this 
coming winter or something goes on and somebody gets hurt and that’s my concern but I want 
to make it clear for the record I’m in no way in favor of shutting down that building.  I look at it as 
a temporary move because we always, always, always are looking for space so I don’t think 
we’ll have a problem if we temporarily move the people to Lewis or finding somebody to put in 
there when it’s time and hopefully to move back. 
 
TYLER:  Temporary move them to Westport.  Like I said we have plenty of areas in Westport to 
keep those employees.  You know eight, ten employees doesn’t seem like a lot to the big areas 
but that’s huge to Westport. 
 
GILLILLAND: I would invite you to bring a proposal to the fairgrounds committee with costs if 
you don’t mind? 
 
TYLER:  No problem. 
 
GILLILLAND: Thank you. 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Yes, I think Mr. Preston said it very well.  I think we are all committed in that we 
know we are going to have to do something with the building.  That’s a given.  At least I think 
everybody on this Board supports that and we just need to come up with creative ways to 
finance it.  If the grants aren’t there then we are going to have to bite the bullet and hammer it 
out over a twenty, thirty year period as we’ve done in the past for other buildings.  I don’t know 
where we stand with the mortgage tax right now I know that is being used to pay down a portion 
of the public safety building, we use that also when we pay the courthouse off on there’s other 
options available out there. 
It’s unfortunate that the politics of the Lewis building and this building got mixed up together.  I 
support buying the Lewis building.  I much rather see us utilize that space for county department 
needs other than, not that you’re a stepchild but third party you know, contractual agencies that 
we contract with.  I think as Mr. Tyler has stated if there is temporary space available in 
Westport where we can house those employees while we are doing the renovations on that 
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building that’s the option we should go with.  I mean, I haven’t seen the Lewis building from the 
inside I’d like to see it.  I don’t know if that building is ready to go?  I don’t know what needs to 
be done in there for renovations to set that up for office space and so on.  I don’t think we need 
to complicate this or mix those two together.  I think it’s two entirely different issues.  Let’s deal 
with Cooperative Extension if there is reasonable space available in Westport then that’s the 
option we should go with. 
 
GILLILLAND:  We have taken a look at the building there in Lewis as I advised Mr. Tyler here 
we have to evaluate the spaces that he’s advocating and also we have to take a look at what it 
would it would cost to recur there and balance that off. 
 
MARNELL:  When we discussed the building in Lewis I thought it was a lot closer to Keeseville 
that you can see off the north way well, last week I had to go to Peru I went by the building well, 
it probably has a step system that needs improvement, we are changing the use of it so we’ll 
have changes to the wires will probably need upgrading, the plumbing will need to be upgraded. 
That building was built quite a few years ago from the looks of it.  It probably doesn’t have a lot 
of handicap accessible features in it I would not recommend buying that building. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Have you seen it Mr. Marnell? 
 
MARNELL:  Just driving by. 
 
GILLILLAND: I would invite the members of the board to go and take a look at it before you 
make a snap judgment about it because we’ve been in it, Todd has been in it, Jim’s been in it 
what we’ve come back with on that building whether it be for any use for county use like this is 
the upgrades would be minimal and I think you quoted me with about a $10,000 to turn it into 
office spaces and that the septic system was currently adequate for change and intended use.  I 
would invite everybody to go take a look at it. 
 
MARNELL:  The other thing too and this is just my opinion I would use the space that is 
available in Westport, if it wasn’t available in Westport I would rent office trailers they come all 
equip, hook the water to them, heat them and put a BOND out and fix that building we sit here 
for twenty-five years and let it fall out from under us and then all of a sudden it’s got to be fixed.  
That’s how we build bridges. These bridges fall apart and we Bond it and the county pays for it.  
It’s either got to be fixed or demolished and I don’t want to see it demolished. 
 
GILLILLAND: Thank you. 
 
MONTY:  Well I guess I’ve got two things. I have heard a lot about space and Tommy did 
mention the fact that we’re inadequate space for the county meetings.  I would like to make a 
suggestion that maybe we get together with Jim and Todd a group of us and start touring public 
safety, touring some of these areas here and see that our space is being used adequately or if 
we can’t find more space.  I think that would be a good first step to space needs down the road. 
Secondly, as a county and I’m sitting here as a Board of Supervisors Mr. Morrow and Mr. 
Scozzafava have been here for years but what I’ve seen in two years is that we historically 
ignore our buildings and that’s why we’re in a situation now that we are at on this building and 
we really need to start taking care of them.  If you look around outside of this building, this 
building if you get close to it it’s in pretty poor shape.  We really need to start taking care of all of 
our buildings for the future.   
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Now as far as finding space for Cornell Cooperative extension is it our responsibility to find that 
space for their offices? 
 
GILLILLAND: The County has no obligation to house Cornell Cooperative Extension or Soil and 
Water there’s no contractual obligation that I am aware of. 
 
MONTY:  Okay so I’m looking at it that way, that there’s no contractual obligation to house it 
does if we were to turn this over to Cooperative Extension does it now become their 
responsibility to help?  Does it relieve us of our responsibility down then?  If we were to convey 
the property to Cornell Cooperative Extension, which was a suggestion does that relieve us of 
our obligation to those employees down there? 
 
GILLILLAND: Yes, I would imagine. 
 
MONTY: And the responsibility would fall on them? 
 
GILLILLAND: It would fall on them but from my opinion –  
 
MONTY: I’m not suggesting that. 
 
GILLILLAND: No, I’m saying this building is in terrible shape and is well pointed out the 
employees that are working there are in jeopardy. 
 
MONTY:  Oh, no doubt, no doubt. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Then it wouldn’t be a very good steward, it would be like – 
 
MONTY:  No I’m just throwing that out there because that it is a possibility.  I don’t think we 
should do that by all means and we need to take care of that and we need to find a reasonable 
way. I think our ability to find funding for this is going to be easier than their ability to find funding 
because historically they found $30,000 in ten years so I think it’s better for us to maintain it and 
do what we need to do than to convey it to them I really don’t think that’s an option. 
 
GILLILLAND: Any other discussion? 
 
HARRINGTON:  Correct me if I’m wrong but I do believe that the executive director of 
Cooperative Extension, let me correct that Essex County Cooperative Extension did view the 
building in Lewis and he does recommend that we explore that thoroughly he does feel that it 
will accommodate the physical needs of Cooperative Extension. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Any other comments or questions? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Cooperative Extension has been in Westport for many years as I can 
remember.  I remember years ago when Essex County owed the Republic Steel Office Building 
in Mineville that the big argument that they hung their hat on you can’t move there because 
we’ve always been in Elizabethtown okay?  So again, the building in Lewis, I haven’t seen it, 
great building, we’ve got space needs of our own I don’t know why we are complicating this?  If 
there is adequate space available in Westport move the employees into that space.  Is it our 
obligation to provide them with space?  I mean they’re in a county building. We do contribute to 
them through our Essex County budget and I’m certain that they’ve got to take on more 
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expenditure to go out there and get space on their own. It’s certainly going to impact the 
program that they currently offer our constituents.  I think our Chairman mentioned earlier that 
Mr. Tyler could try and get us some proposals as to what it would cost on space in Westport and 
move forward from there.   
The building in Lewis, that’s another day.  I did speak to Mr. Monty and also Dan Palmer and we 
are going to do a tour and Mr. Monty just had a great suggestion we have other issues here also 
we’ve got to deal with such as the roof on the old jail. Are we going to take that down?  My 
opinion on that fix the roof, it’s not hurting anything sitting there and we’re not going to create a 
big hole in this county complex so let’s fix the roof so at least it stops leaking so that building 
doesn’t fall in in the next five years.  So there is a lot that we need to do but let’s stick to the 
issue at hand right now and that’s Cooperative Extension. 
 
GILLILLAND:  I will take it I guess from the fairgrounds committee point of view at this point, that 
our next charge now that this has been presented to you and you all have the numbers and the 
facts. The next thing we’ll do is to evaluate the options of temporary housing of the two agencies 
there and come back with a report.  Is that okay with the board? 
 
SCOZZAFAVA:  Yes. 
 
GILLILLAND:  Okay, we’ll take that on. Any other comments or questions?  Alright we’re 
adjourned. 
 
 As there was no further discussion to come before this Ways and Means Committee it 
was adjourned at 12:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Judy Garrison, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors  
 

 
 
 


